


Table of Contents
June 4, 2025

Agenda Item #IIL.....coociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e Approval of Agenda

Agenda Item #IV....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e Consent Agenda Approvals

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of May 7, 2025
b. Approval of the Preliminary March 2025 Financials

Agenda Item #V . .ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e General Manager/Team Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #III






Consent Agenda Approvals
Agenda Item #IV



a. Approval of the Minutes of

the Regular Session of
May 7, 2025



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, May 7, 2025 at 6:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: David Haley, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Mary Gonzales,
Stevie A. Wakes Sr., and Thomas Groneman. Brett Parker, Secretary, attended via Zoom.

Also present: Jeremy Ash, General Manager; Wendy Green, Senior Counsel; Andrew
Ferris, Chief Financial Officer; Leigh Mulholland, Chief Compliance Officer; Jerry Sullivan,
Chief Information Officer; Darrin McNew, Executive Director Electric Operations; Jerin
Purtee, Executive Director Electric Supply; Steve Green, Executive Director Water
Operations; Donald Stahl, Executive Director Electric Production; Gabriela Freeman, Director
Customer Care; Amber Oetting; Director Communications & Marketing; Steve Hargis,
Supervisor Water Operations; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Mr. Haley called the Board meeting to order at 6:00 PM. He welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. He informed all that the meeting was being recorded
including video and audio. He noted a change to the Board meeting structure and read section
1.1 from the Board Rules of Procedure. During the public comments section, community
members who wished to speak to the Board would be asked to provide their name and address.
Members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the raise
hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment
sections. Those attending in person should sign up on the sheet located near the entry and
indicate if they wished to speak with Customer Care regarding their account. Public
comments would be limited to five minutes and should be addressed to the Board. No
confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. He informed all participants to act respectfully
to each other; personal attacks or accusations would not be tolerated. All concerns would be
directed to the Board only, they would then determine staff involvement. If side discussion
was necessary, it was to be conducted outside of the Board room to avoid interfering with
presenters or other attendees. If any rules were breached during this meeting, the attendee was
subject to removal.

Mr. Haley introduced himself and the other Board members along with the General Manager,
and Ms. Wendy Green, Deputy Chief Counsel.
Page 1 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2025
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Roll call was taken and all Board members were present. Mr. Parker was present via
Zoom.

JTtem #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda, by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Ms.
Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Jtem #4— Consent Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda of May 7, 2025, by Ms. Mulvany
Henry, seconded by Mr. Groneman, and unanimously carried.

Consent Items:
a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of April 2, 2025

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of April 16, 2025
c. Approval of the Preliminary March 2025 Financials

Item #5— General Manager / Team Reports

a) Wyandotte Economic Development Council (WYEDC) Update: Mr. Greg Kindle
reviewed with the Board, various projects the WYEDC was working on and those
coming to fruition. He also spoke about Kansas City Kansas employment pathways,
engaging and connecting residents with jobs. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Kindle responded to questions and comments from the Board.

Item #6— Public Comments

Mr. Ty Gorman, 2843 Parkwood Blvd., expressed his views on potential data center
projects.

Mr. Murray Anderson, Wyandotte County, spoke his thoughts about the capital
required for projects and how he would address the financial system.

Page 2 of 4



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2025
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #7— Miscellaneous Comments

Mr. Ash spoke about the Mayor’s Water Week Proclamation. He congratulated Steve
Nirschl, Director Water Processing, and the team for their continuous hard work.

He talked about the Electric Operations crew that were down in Arizona, working to
help provide electricity to the Navajo reservation and how he saw it as a move toward the culture

the utility was trying to foster within the employees.

He said he would work on scheduling a June meeting to go over data center questions
and information.

Item #8— Board Comments

Ms. Mulvany Henry thanked Mr. Gorman and looked forward to continuing
discussions around data centers and the community. She also thanked Mr. Anderson for his
comments. She spoke about attending the previous week’s Unified Government (UG)
Commission meeting and thanked the team members for being there, ready to present on data
center project, in the late hour.

Mr. Ash said Commissioner Davis had reached out to schedule a meeting regarding
data center questions. He also wished Ms. Mulvany Henry a Happy Birthday.

Ms. Gonzales wished Ms. Mulvany a Happy Birthday and thanked Mr. Kindle for the
work he did in the community and for the interesting information he brought to the Board.

Mr. Parker thanked Mr. Kindle as well and looked forward to the work ahead.

Mr. Wakes echoed earlier comments and looked forward to hearing more. He thanked
staff for their hard work.

Mr. Groneman echoed previous comments and thanked Mr. Kindle, Mr. Gorman, and
Mr. Anderson for their participation.

Mr. Haley also echoed previous comments and expressed appreciation for the insight
brought by Mr. Kindle. He also thanked Mr. Gorman and Mr. Anderson for being there. He
said that he would forward information regarding the World Cup Readiness task force to Ms.
May to send to the Board. He was honored to be a member of the Task Force that would work

Page 3 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

to promote our businesses and events and to welcome visitors. He also spoke about the UG’s
recognition of the Water Department and congratulated them again.

Mr. Ash spoke about some recent personnel changes: Mr. Nick Moreno, promoted to
Stakeholder Engagement Manager and, Ms. Gabriella Freeman, promoted to Director

Customer Care.

Mr. Haley said he was glad to see the customer appointments happening as he walked
through the lobby and also thanked Ms. Green for participating in the evening’s meeting.

Item 9 — Adjourn

At 7:36 PM a motion to adjourn was made by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Ms.
Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 4 of 4













































b. Approval of the Preliminary
April 2025 Financials




















































































9¢

04D
SLLI9,] MAIpUy

2,

6Y'€ 8 S1°€ STOZ/P3UIqUIO) GZOTZ/IdIM 0£0Z/O1109]H - 9FeI9A0)
9ZH'886°LY LOT‘06S'S 8LE°899°b $ AR - 991AI9S 1G9 [eNUUY WNUIIXEIA
£T°€ 96'C €1°¢ 9707/PAUWIqUIO])  9ZOZ/IRIBM 6707/21199[H - 98819400
8P0°9E8 IS 8EYI11°6 9£0°088 v¥ $ 193(J T8I0 - 991A12G 1qd(J [ENUUY WINWIXBIA
6V0°6LS L] ~000°596°9C 6v0 Y 19°0¥1 $ sanuaAdy 19N
(6¥S 1¥£'0TD) (1,9°288°1€) (8£8°85H°881) sosuadxy soueusjurely pue Juneredo
865°076°L8¢E 1L9°LH8°8S LT6°TLO'6TE $ sanuaAYy
SZ0T 0¢ 11y $Z0Z 0% [dv SZ0Z 0¢ 1HdV
Suipug syjoN ZI  Sulpug SyiuoN z]  Sulpug SYIUOIN 7|
Uoc _DE OU Io)e M om.:oﬂm—,

"sasuadxy 0UBUSIUTBIA pue uoleIad() SSa] “Wwa)sAS AN 21} JO SANUSASY S} SUELSW , SANUIAIY 9N,

-1openb
Iepus|ed yons ynm uipus porad yiuow sAjom] 9y J0J WaISAS AN|LI() 2Y} JO SONUSATY 19N ay3 ajeno[es o} paxnbai sy sanIIN) 21[qnd JO pleog
9y} “aInyuapu] ISTL], PaleIsay pue PIPUSUIY PUOIS Y} Ul PAULJIP SE SAINJUSPU] 1eusws)ddng Aue pue g1z ‘g Joquiaos(] Jo se aAndsIId Y107 “1
aunyf JO S8 Pajep ‘@IMjudpuU] ISII], PajeISaYy pue PapusWY Pu0ISS Sy} Ul PAUIJIP SE ‘Saxnjuspuy [ewaurs[ddng sy Jo syuswalnbal a1y 0} Burpiosoy

§z0Z [udy
POPUH YIUOJA 2, 10
SaNII() dMqnd Jo preog
91 0] sanuaAdy 19N JO
uoltye[nofe)) Jo 91edINII)



le

'SaNUSARI FuneIado-uoU SNOJUR[JAISIW JOYJ0 pUE SIUSUNISIAUT

uo jsaxojul ‘fesodsip yse ‘[miusl Juswiydene 9jod/I1omo) ‘93] 199UUCISIPAOSUUOD ‘SIUNOISIP PSjIajIo] :Sepn{oul JAYj0 pue swoou Isassiu]  (7)

awoou] Junjesado-uou Jayjo pue uoiosjold axy ‘sanLoyine orqnd ‘Sunysi AemySry :sopapour sajes BPO (1)  :SAON

*SaNUaAdL AIRUIPIORNXS 9pN|oul jou [[eys pue Ad1jod aoueinsul aewidoidde ue £q pazarod waisAS Anp oy Aq paimouy sso]

Aue 03 10adsa1 yum pred spasooid apnjout jou [[eys uLra) yons nq ‘spasooxd puog WOY PIAMSP pun,{ UoNONLSUO)) 9y} ur sajuow asot 1daaxs (y[(Z ‘Qunf pajep

ISNIT, JO 3IMJuSpU] aYy) uralsy paysi|qelso spunyg sy) Jo Auk uJ SIIUOW JO JUSWISIAUI Y] WO PIALISP SLWODWI [[e SIPNJou] pue ‘wajsAg Al yous jo spapoid

pue $901A13S JO 9sN pue a[es Ay} UI0h pue wISAS A1 Yy 03 19adsar yum NJg oY Aq pasodurr saFreyo pue sajes Surpniowun ‘walsAS ANNM Y wWoy NJg

oy} AQ PoAIaDAI SINUSAII [[€ SAPN[OU] PUB ‘BSIMIIYIO 10 WINSAS AU oY) 0} SHUSULISNSq 10 saedal ‘SJUaWaTIR|US ‘SUoISUaIXs Woy Jup[nsal 19y1oym joalal))

wred 1030 Jo 193[01g Aue 10 WAISAS AN Y3 Jo [03U0d pue uoneledo uswaFeuew oy} woy NJd U AQ PIALISP NUIASI pUER JWOOUI [[B UBSUI ,SINUIASY,,

(12 SV 1) wawnsnfpe uonelIou0al (DY) Jusuodwoy) ajey ASISUF I0] PoLISJop SNUIAIY

865°0Z6°L8¢€ 1L9°L¥8°8S LT6'TLO'6TE $
(0£0°LS8°T) - (0£0°LS8‘T)

789°605p1 080°PZ¥C 209°680°C1
$86°650°8¢€ 8768£6°S LSOLTTZE

0ST'LIL L] ££9°88%°I L19°8LT91

L08°800°1 LETH9 ob¥'L9¢

875801 780°¢S8 IbHSSH I

€8€°L8L VS LLZ18€°9 901°'90¥% 8y
990°LS8°1€] TSHYSLE] v19°201°811
LT6°I8Y611 TS8°69¢°LT SLOLTI'Z6 $

$Z0Z "0¢ 1hdy 6Z0C 0t dy $20¢ 0% (mdy
Suipug sqiuoj Z1  Suipug syuop g1 Suipug SyIuoN 71
quQEOO uoumk/ ombouﬁm

SHONAATYT
[ NqIYXH

SONUOADY JeI0],
s3ujuwieq pun, UORONIISUOYD) S5
+dd/[90] - anUsAdY palIJe(]
99UBNSS] JO IS00) puog

(2) 19410 pue swodsy] 189133U]
saxe ], JO a1 U Juawike

sopeg s[esojoym

(1) sejes 3030

s[ooyos

soJeg JeLIsnpuy

S9[BS [EloIWWOo))

So[BS [ENUAPISIY

SoNUAAIY ANIN( TR0



8¢

"Ndd 3ys £q pazijendes a1e Y1y ‘[ong pue saxe) Swpnpout ‘swayt Kuadoid-yons pue waiskg A1y 2y jo sanadoid Lue jo uonisodsip
J3410 10 UONEN[BARI “UCHEIYISSE]I] “JUdUUOpUERGE O]2s S WO SJUBWOMIAL 10 0} SJUSUIACIJWI 1O SUOISULIXS ‘SIUOULIONSq ‘Sjuatuasedar ‘suolippe jelides 10§ Iojasoy) opew sa3ieyo 1o ‘S1S09
‘Ndd 2Y) 10 AND 2y} JO SS3UPIG2PUL IA1I0 10 Papuoq Jo uolezipoure Jo [ediourid jo yuswAed ay) 10§ soSeyo pue sareys 15e10u ‘solqI3uelul Jo UCHEZILOWE ‘Sway asuadxs Surmaso Apuonbaryu
Jo fensnun Ajjet1o)eu 10 ATRUIPIOBIIXD 10J219Y) SIA19591 10 $381eYS 90USISI|0SQO JO UOHEIOAIdAP “saxw) Jo nat| uf sjusuked opnjoul jou op sasuadxy asueusjurely pue uonesddo ‘sapdiound Suhunosse
paidadoe A[[BIousd yym 20Uep10d3E U Sasuadxq SouvuSIUIRl pue Suneiad() aq 0] PaIAPISUOD SIE YOIYM §IS00 JOUI0 AUB PUB “JapuUnalal 3JISIUT, Sy} JO 350U Suipnpour ‘Areronpyy Aue Jo sssusdxs
pue s33) 3y ‘sajdiound Sununosor pajdaooe A[[eIousd 1opun walsAS Aupnn 3yl o1 sjqesoqe Ajradold Juoxs sy of ‘meT £q Jo AL o Jo soueUIpIo A9 NJd Y1 Aq pred aq 0) pannbar suonediqo
1o sasuadxs JuaLnd Aue ‘901AJ0s Uolssnusuen pue Jamod paseydoind Jo 1509 oY) ‘S)S0D [ony ‘SOBIEYD [BIUSWUINACS JOY30 ‘(3os19y) nay| ul spuswked Furpnjour Jou Q) SHXB) ‘SIVIAIIS [EIIUYII) PUE
Bunnsuoo [euonIppe Jo 1509 3y} pue sasuadxa pue $933 A10s1ApE [BroURUY pUe Supunodse ‘Guussurdus [eda) ‘swnpwsid soueinsur ‘sasuadxa JUSWAINLI puE uoisuad ‘uonezireydsoy ‘ypesy soakojdus
‘sadem pue saue[es ‘sjuswose(dol pue sjpmauds ‘siredar Kreuipio Jo 53505 Uy Jo juswded ayy 1oy Aressaoau Ksuowr Jje Suipnjour ‘parmbal Aoleipawiun uay) jou si yoiym Jo juawAed sy ‘swayl yons

JoJ opise 3os 9 0 pastnbai A[qeuoseal KoUoW JO SJUNOWE ‘o) PajjuN| 10u Ing ‘Bupnjout ‘WSS ANNN 2y} Aesodo pue urEIUIEW 0} A19SSIOU SPUNY Y} SULIW |, SsUXF SIUBULIUIEIA pUE uoneladp,,

"SpuUoyg anuaAay uipuelsino uo ssusdxa 1591933 SOPNIIXT,

6bS THE0ZT 129°788°1€ 8/8°851°881 $ sasuadxy osueusjurey 7% Junesado
(586°550°3€) (826°9¢€6°S) (LSO'LII°TE) SOXE[,JO NI U] JudAe :§597]
(998969 %) {(851°88¢°8) (80L°80£°9E) uoneZipouy puy uoperadsq :ssoy
00¥ ¥60°€0€ LSL60T 9 £59°88°9ST Sasuadxy Suerado
STOT Ot 1AV $20¢ 0t 1HdV ST0T 0¢ THAV
Suipud syUO 71 Juipug sYUoN 71 Juipug syuop 71
paulquio)) Ioem Ry

SHSNHIXH HONVNHINIVIN ANV SNOILLVIHdO

¢ NqIgxy



£00-00T-Z0 A21104 aulaping |efaueuld Ndg 9Yl Ul PaYSHORISD SB SpUNj dAJasal 8yl puny Ajnj 03 papaaul Junoule 3yl sjuasaldas aduejeq Ysea pajduIsasun ayL

{vtv'LET'0T) $ {¢8EE6L'T) $ {teo'vye's) S SIUIIISIAUS PUE YSB) PaduIsaun
TLTTST'BTT $ 69E°L08°LT S £06'EVE’06 S SUOLIDLNSAY {10,
000002 000°06 000°0TT pun4 yuawdofaaaq MNwouod3z
858ZT0°LE P9Y'v20'e V6E‘8BEVE Juawalinbay aalasay Sunesado Juiuieway
vOT'LZ0'ET bOTLZ0'ET - JuBWdolanag WaisAS
000°v0T°S 000649 000'szy’y SZ0Z 103 3AI3s3Y uonaNnsuo) uiodup
000°005°T 000°0ST 000'05€'T pun4 Asuadiawz pue uawaaoidwy
£L2'95T'6 - £L2'95T6 pung uonezjiqels ajey
000°0629 0000679 - pund uonoNpay 1qaqa
999°20T'LE 789'sv8°e S Y86'T9T'EC pung 931AI96 1gag
000°005'6 0000056 9AI359Y DH3
000°00T°T 000°022 000088 dwo) SIaYI0M- dAISBY AJUBINSUY §13S
000°000°T 000002 000008 Aunqer) aygnd - aA1esay adueInsul J135
TLE'EST'L S 6T1'182'T S T52°2L8°S $ ysodaq Jawoisn

SJUAWISIAU| PUE YSE) JO SUOHIIIISDY

8S8°ET0'80T 3 786'€T0'9Z S 9.8'666'T8 S SZ/0E/t 4O SE SIUBLIISIAL] pUE ysE)
(98Z'106'vLT) {v0S‘L0t'9T) (z8L'e6Y'8ST) 91eQ 03 Jed, sjuawAed ysed
S9£'98L'9LT TYL'E96 LT vZ0'€28'8ST 3jeq 0} Jedx sidivoay Yse)
6LE'8Z1°90T S StL1SY'vT S VE9'0L9'T8 3 SZ/10/10J0 5y  siuawisanu pue ysed Sujuuidag
[ZELULTICN) TBIEM EIFECTE]
§Z0¢ "OE v SZ0¢ "0 1AV §20¢ '0¢ 1Ay
SINIFWLSIANI ANY HSYD

S31LALLN J1NENd 40 QYvO4d ALID SYSNYA



General Manager/Team Reports
Agenda Item #V



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5313

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE OVER RECOVERY OF THE
ENERGY RATE COMPONENT (ERC) FOR THE 3RP AND 4TH
QUARTER OF 2024 IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,658,617 WHICH

WILL BE RECOGNIZED OVER THE FIRST AND SECOND
QUARTERS OF 2025.

WHEREAS, the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities an administrative agency of the
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas ("KCBPU”) adopted the
Energy Rate Component Rate Rider in a rate hearing which provides for a reconciliation
adjustment for over and under recoveries; and

WHEREAS, the KCBPU had an over recovery in the 3™ and 4" quarters of 2024 in the
amount of $9,658,617 and wishes to amortize it over the 1% and 2™ quarter of 2025.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU:

The over recovery of the Energy Rate Component for the 3™ and 4® quarters of 2024
shall be recognized in the amount of $9,658,617 and shall be amortized over the 1% and 2
quarter of 2025.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 4" DAY OF JUNE, 2025.

David Haley, Board President

Attest:

Brett Parker, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:

KCBPU Legal Counsel



RESOLUTION NO: 5314

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE 2024 AUDITED INANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AN
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS:

Whereas, the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and Schedules has been presented to the
elected Board of the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities, an administrative agency of the
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas; and

Whereas, the elected Board has reviewed said Statements and Schedules as audited by
FORVIS MAZARS, LLP; and

Whereas, the elected Board wishes to adopt the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
Schedules.

Therefore, the elected Board hereby adopts the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
Schedules.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 4" DAY OF JUNE, 2025.

David Haley, Board President

. Attest:

Brett Parker, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:

KCBPU Legal Counsel






